

OF THE TOWN OF

STEWARTSTOWN New Hampshire

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31



INCLUDING A REPORT OF THE SCHOOL DIRECTORS





OF THE TOWN OFFICERS

OF THE TOWN OF

STEWARTSTOWN New Hampshire

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

DECEMBER 31



M/S PRINTING & ADVERTISING

Colebrook, N. H.

Digitized by the Internet Archive in 2010 with funding from Boston Library Consortium Member Libraries

http://www.archive.org/details/annualreportofto1972stew

OFFICERS

Moderator	THEODORE PARISEAU
Selectmen	HARRY E. BIRON HASEN E. BURNS JOHN D. ANGEVINE
Town Clerk	LYNNE O. PLACEY
Town Treasurer	LYNNE O. PLACEY
Auditors	FABIANA PARKER GLENNA RANCLOES
Supervisors of Check List	NORMA BURNS FABIANA PARKER MARION PARRISH
Overseer of Public Welfare	BURLEIGH PLACEY
Road Agents	HOWARD CARNEY FRANK RANCLOES
Constable	HARRY DYER, SR. LEO LACHANCE BURLEIGH PLACEY
Tax Collector, January–March April–December	MARY B. COZZIE EVELYN R. BOHAN
Sexton	J. C. KENNETH POORE
Library Trustee	J. C. KENNETH POORE MARY B. COZZIE
Board of Health	SELECTMEN ROBERT BURNS
Collector of Diamond Pond Rent	J. C. KENNETH POORE
Trustee of Trust Funds	J. C. KENNETH POORE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Officers	2
Warrant	3
Budget	7
Inventory of Town Property	8
Statement of Appropriations	9
Financial Report	11
Comparative Statement	12
Schedule of Town Property	14
Town Clerk's Report	14
Tax Collector's Report	15
Summary of Payments	18
Detailed Statement of Receipts	19
Detailed Statement of Payments	21
Treasurer's Report	31
Auditors' Report	31
Report of the Trust Funds	32
Financial Report	35
School Report	37
Vital Statistics	61
Mental Health Service Report	65



WARRANT

The State of New Hampshire

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Stewartstown, in the County of Coos in said State qualified to vote in Town Affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town House in said town of Stewartstown on Tuesday, the 6th day of March, next, at ten o'clock in the forenoon to act upon the following subjects:

- 1. To see if the town will vote to accept State Aid.
- To raise such sums of money as may be necessary for the support of the poor.
- 3. To raise such sums of money as may be necessary for support of libraries.
- 4. To raise such sums of money as may be necessary for care of cemeteries.
- 5. To see if the town will vote to raise three thousand (\$3,000.00) dollars for street lighting.
- 6. To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise for the following departments:
 - (a) Police Department
 - (b) Fire Department
 - (c) Sewer Department
- 7. To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise for winter roads.
- To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise for summer roads.
- To see what sum of money the town will vote to raise in addition to that required by law for the town maintenance.
- To see if the town will vote to raise nine hundred fifty dollars (\$950.00) to contribute to the Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service, Inc. (By Petition) (By Ballot) Yes () No ()
- To see if the Town will vote to raise two thousand (\$2,000.00) dollars toward the support of Upper Connecticut Hospital. (By Ballot)

Yes () No ()

 To see if the town will vote to raise the Town Officers' Salaries:

> Selectmen Tax Collector Town Clerk & Treasurer

Auditors Overseer of the Poor

- 13. To see if the town will vote to accept the budget made up by the Selectmen and to raise money for the same. If not, to see what sum of money the town will vote to raise to defray town charges for the ensuing year as follows:
 - (a) Town Officers' Salaries.
 - (b) Town Officers' Expenses.
 - (c) Election & Registration.
 - (d) Town Hall, office and other buildings.
 - (e) Damage & Legal Expenses
 - (f) Health Department.
 - (g) Town Dump Expenses
 - (h) Vital Statistics
 - (i) General Expense of Highway Department.
 - (j) Civil Defense.
 - (k) Interest of Temporary Loans.
- 14. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to appoint such commission to consist of three members, all being legal voters of said town; to be in charge of and responsible for attending to the new sewerage project; and to see what sum of money will be raised for their salaries.
- 15. To see if the town will vote to keep open, during the winter months, that part of the Bear Rock Road which extends to the South Hill Road and goes to Colon Chappell's barn. (Not by Ballot) (By Petition)
- 16. To see if the town will vote to re-classify that portion of road starting from Cazzola's Hill to the end of the Town Road (approximately five tenths of a mile) from a Summer Residence Road to a Year-Round Residence road; and that this same portion of road be improved during the summer months so as to make it maintainable through the winter months as per resolution made at the last Town Meeting.
- 17. To see if the town will vote to discontinue two portions of road off Route No. 3, the first portion being that North of Walter Stanton's camp to the Ledges Motel and the second portion being that North of the Ledges Motel and above the state's right-of-way; and to impower the Selectmen to act for the public in conveying said roadbed and rightof-way to the adjoining landowners. (By Ballot)

18. To see if the town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to incur debts for temporary loans in anticipation of Taxes of the municipal year and pay out of the tax money when it is received.

- 19. To see if the town will vote to instruct the Selectmen to appoint all other officers as required by law not elected by Non-Partisan Ballot.
- 20. To choose by Non-Partisan Ballot the following Town Officers:
 - (a) Town Clerk
 - (b) Selectmen for three years ensuing
 - (c) Town Treasurer
 - (d) Town Road Agents
 - (e) One or more Auditors
 - (f) Overseer of Public Welfare
 - (q) Collector of Diamond Pond Rent
 - (h) One or more Sextons
 - (i) Trustee of Trust Funds
 - (j) One Library Trustee for three years ensuing
- 21. To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twelve thousand dollars (\$12,000.00), approximately what it would cost, for the re-evaluation of all taxable properties in said town. Such re-evaluation to be conducted by the New Hampshire State Tax Commission. (By Ballot)

22. To see if the town will vote to accept Revenue Sharing Funds. (By Ballot)

Yes () No ()

23. To see if the Town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the amount of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) or whatever portion thereof is needed to support Ambulance District A-1. (By Ballot)

- 24. To see if the Town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the necessary amount to affect suitable repairs to our existing Town House; and that the Selectmen be authorized to hire those persons capable of making the repairs.
- 25. To see if the Town will vote to authorize withdrawal from the Revenue Sharing Fund established under the provisions of the State and Local Assistance Act of 1972, the necessary amount to enter into a contract in the name of the town for the purpose of contracting for aerial photography and property tax maps for the Town.

- 26. To see if the Town will vote to set aside the sum of five thousand dollars (\$5,000.00) from Revenue Sharing Funds for the purpose of aerial photography and property tax maps. (By Ballot)
 Yes ()
 No ()
- 27. To transact any other business that may legally be brought before this meeting.

Given under our hands and seals this 8th day of February in the year of our Lord nineteen hundred seventy-three.

> HARRY E. BIRON HASEN E. BURNS JOHN N. ANGEVINE Selectmen of Stewartstown

A true copy of Warrant – Attest: HARRY E. BIRON HASEN E. BURNS JOHN N. ANGEVINE Selectmen of Stewartstown

BUDGET

Purpose of Expend-			
itures	Raised	Spent	Estimated
	1972	1972	1973
Town Officers'Sal-			
aries	\$ 2,300.00	\$ 2,365.60	\$ 4,050.00
Town Officers' Ex-	φ 2,000.00	φ 2,000.00	φ 4,000.00
penses	700.00	774.23	700.00
Election & Regis-	700.00	771.20	100.00
tration	400.00	447.20	400.00
Expenses of Town			
Hall & Other Town			
Buildings	1,400.00	1,110.07	1,400.00
Police Department	1,200.00	1,965.25	1,200.00
Fire Department	1,500.00	903.89	1,500.00
Damages & Legal Ex-	1,000.00	000.00	1,000.00
penses	2,400.00	2,568.30	2,600.00
Health Department	60.00	107.60	60.00
Vital Statistics	100.00	15.00	50.00
Sewer Maintenance	500.00	1,154.67	1,000.00
Town Dump	2,000.00	1,838.25	2,000.00
Town Maintenance	2,000.00	1,000.20	2,000.00
Summer	6,000.00	9,278.29	8,000.00
Town Maintenance	0,000.00	0,270.20	0,000.00
Winter	15,000.00	14,970.81	15,000.00
Street Lighting	2,700.00	2,879.99	3,000.00
General Expense of	2,700.00	2,075.55	3,000.00
Highway Depart-			
ment	3,000.00	6,892.91	3,000.00
Town Road Aid	760.69	760.69	779.48
Special Gravel	700.00	700.00	775.40
Brush Fund	500.00	77.00	250.00
Libraries	160.00	294.00	200.00
Town Poor	300.00	90.77	300.00
Old Age Assistance	4,000.00	5,281.57	5,500.00
Parks and Play-	1,000.00	0,201.07	0,000.00
grounds	125.00	125.00	125.00
Cemeteries	400.00	644.11	400.00
Interest on Tempor-		0	.00.00
ary Loans	1,000.00	745.84	1,000.00
Abatements	.,	616.04	1,000.00
Upper Conn. Valley			
Mental Health			
Service	950.00	950.00	950.00
Re-evaluation of			
Town Property			12,000.00
Sewerage Project			,
Salaries			600.00
	-7-		

Upper Conn. Valley Hospital			2,000.00
Town Approp-			
riations	\$47,455.69	\$56,857.08	\$68,064.48
County Taxes	8,500.00	8,456.05	8,500.00
School Taxes	141,992.13	154,553.61	144,616.00
Totals	\$197,947.82	\$219,866.74	\$221,180.48

INVENTORY OF TOWN PROPERTY

Land Buildings	\$ 483,430.00 1,085,542.00
Public Utilities-Electric	324,506.00
House Trailers	20,701.00
Total Valuation Before Exemptions Allowed	\$1,914,179.00
Total Exemptions Allowed	40,094.00
Net Valuation	\$1,874,085.00

STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS.

AND TAXES ASSESSED FOR YEAR 1972

	A 0 000 00	
Town Officers' Salaries	\$ 2,300.00	
Town Officers' Expenses	700.00	
Election & Registration	400.00	
Expenses of Town Hall &	4 400 00	
Other Town Buildings	1,400.00	
Police Department	1,200.00	
Fire Department	1,500.00	
Damages & Legal Expenses	2,400.00	
Health Department	60.00	
Vital Statistics	100.00	
Sewer Maintenance	500.00	
Town Dump	2,000.00	
Town Maintenance		
Summer	6,000.00	
Town Maintenance		
Winter	15,000.00	
Street Lighting	2,700.00	
General Expense of		
Highway Department	3,000.00	
Town Road Aid	760.69	
Special Gravel	-	
Brush Fund	-	
Libraries	160.00	
Town Poor	300.00	
Old Age Assistance	4,000.00	
Parks & Playgrounds	125. <mark>00</mark>	
Cemeteries	400.00	
Interest on Temporary Loans	1,000.00	
Abatements	-	
Upper Connecticut Valley		
Mental Health Service	_	
Total Town Appropriations		\$46,005.69
Less: Estimated Revenues & Credits:		
Interest & Dividends Tax	521.11	
Railroad Tax	264.87	
Savings Bank Tax	536.17	
Highway Subsidy	11,206.00	
Meals and Rooms Tax	4,498.00	
Reimbursement a/c State and	·	
Federal Lands	229.10	
Yield Tax Sources	4,111.72	
Interest Received on Taxes	296.73	
Interest needbook on rakes		

-9-

Filing Fees Dog Licenses Motor Vehicle Permits Resident Taxes Retained Cemetery Lot Diamond Pond Road Diamond Pond Rent	21.00 118.00 10,500.00 2,052.00 10.00 1,425.00 400.00	
Total Revenues and Credits		\$36,189.70
Net Town Appropriations		9,815.99
Net School Appropriation		134,778.68
County Tax Assessment		8,456.05
Total of Town, School & County Appropriations Deduct: Reimb. a/c Property Exempted 1970 Spec. Session Add: War Service Tax Credits Add: Overlay Gross Property Taxes to be Raised		\$153,050.72 15,660.00 1,550.00 5,363.82 \$144,304.54
Property Taxes to be Committed to Collector:		
Gross Property Taxes Less: War Service Tax Credits	\$144,304.54 1,550.00	
Total Tax Commitment	\$142,754.54	
Tax Rate – \$7.70 Town – .75 School – 6.55		

County – .40

FINANCIAL REPORT

Assets

Cash in hand of Treasurer January 1, 1973		\$ 83,944.14
Unredeemed Taxes from Tax Sales: 1971 1970 1969 1968 1967–66	\$ 890.04 87.61 91.20 124.50 84.25	
Uncollected Taxes: 1972 Property Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes	\$14,663.21 820.00 48.00	1,277.60
1971 Property Taxes	342.04	\$15,531.21
		342.04
Total Assets		\$101,094.99
Excess of Liabilities Over Assets		24,177.13
Total		\$125,272.12
Liabilities		
Balance of School Taxes, 1972–73 School Year 1972 Bond & Debt Retirement Tax, Due January 31, 1973		\$123,992.13 328.24
1972 Resident Tax & Penalties Due January 15, 1973		951.75
Total Liabilities		\$125,272.12

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT

OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES Vear Ending December 31, 1972

-12-

Title of Appropriation:	Approp- riation	Receipts & Reimburse- ments	Total Amt. Available	Expend- itures	Unexpend- ed Balance	Over- draft
Town Officers' Salaries Town Officers' Expenses Election & Registration	\$ 2,300.00 700.00 400.00	\$ 56.80	\$ 2,300.00 756.80 400.00	\$ 2,365.60 774.23 447.20		\$ 65.60 17.43 47.20
Expense of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Police Department	1,400.00		1,400.00	1,110.07 1 065 25	289.93	766 7 6
Fire Department	1,500.00	55.00	1,500.00 2,455.00	903.89 903.89 9568.30	596.11	113.30
	60.00		60.00	107.60	85.00	47.60
Sewer Maintenance Town Dump	500.00 2,000.00		500.00 2,000.00	1,154.67 1,838.25	161.75	654.57
Town Maintenance Summer Town Maintenance	6,000.00		6,000.00	9,278.29		3,278.29
Winter Winter Street Lighting	15,000.00 2,700.00	15.00	15,015.00 2,700.00	14,970.81 2,879.99	44.19	879.99
General Expense of Highway Department	3,000.00		3,000.00	6,892.91		3,892.91

134.00 1,281.57 244.11 343.30	\$11,765.12 12,561.48	\$24,326.60	\$22,219.28	
423.00 209.23 254.16	\$ 2,063.37 43.95	\$ 2,107.32		
760.69 77.00 294.00 90.77 5,281.57 125.00 644.11 745.84 616.04 950.00	\$56,857.08 8,456.05 154,553.61	\$219,866.74		\$ 9,701.75 43.95 123,992.13
760.69 500.00 160.00 300.00 4,000.00 125.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 272.74 950.00	\$47,855.23 8,500.00 141,992.13	\$198,277.36		raft lus School hool Year
272.74	\$399.54	\$399.54		Town Overdraft County Surplus Balance Due School 1972–73 School Year
760.69 500.00 160.00 300.00 4,000.00 125.00 1,000.00	\$47,455.69 8,500.00 141,992.13	\$197,947.82		
Town Road Aid Special Gravel Brush Fund Libraries Town Poor Old Age Assistance Parks & Playgrounds Cemeteries Interest on Temporary Loans Abatements Upper Conn. Valley Mental Health Service	Town Appropriations County Taxes School Taxes	Totals	Net Overdraft of Appropriations	-13-

SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY

Town Hall and Land	\$ 4,500.00
Libraries	4,000.00
Office Equipment	1,600.00
Highway Department,	
Lands & Garage	1,500.00
Parks and Playgrounds	1,000.00
School Houses	63,500.00
School Equipment	2,000.00
Highway Equipment	500.00
	\$78,600.00

TOWN CLERK'S REPORT

During the year ending December 31, 1972, a total of 9 births, 6 marriages, and 19 deaths were recorded in the vital statistics records of the Town.

Town Clerk's Receipts:

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees Collected	
for Town	\$11,581.15
Dog Tax Collected	118.00
Pistol License Fees	6.00
Filing Fees	21.00
Total Collected by Town Clerk and	
Deposited with Town Treasurer	\$11,726.15

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT

PROPERTY, RESIDENT AND YIELD TAXES

LEVY OF 1972

Taxes Committed to Collector:		
Property Taxes	\$142,655.00	
Resident Taxes	3,690.00	
National Bank Stock Taxes	59.17	
Yield Taxes	1,969.31	
	1,303.51	
Added Taxes:		
Property Taxes	276.28	
Resident Taxes	250.00	
Overpayments During Year:		
Resident Taxes	10.00	
Interest Collected on Delinquen		
Property Taxes	2.03	
Penalties Collected on Resident		
Taxes	15.00	
TOTAL		\$148,926.79
Remittances to Treasurer:		
Property Taxes	126,685.02	
Resident Taxes	2,960.00	
National Bank Stock Taxes	59.17	
Yield Taxes	1,921.31	
Interest Collected	2.03	
Penalties on Resident Taxes	15.00	
Discounts Allowed	10.00	
Abatements		
Property Taxes	1,583.05	
Resident Taxes	160.00	
Uncollected Taxes		
December 31, 1972		
Property Taxes	14,663.21	
Resident Taxes	820.00	
Yield Taxes		
TIERU TAXES	48.00	
TOTAL		\$148,926.79

PROPERTY, RESIDENT AND YIELD TAXES

LEVY OF 1971

Uncollected Taxes –		
as of January 1, 1972	¢ 01 705 70	1
Property Taxes	\$ 21,785.73 730.00	
Resident Taxes		
Yield Taxes	85.27	
Added Taxes:		
Resident Taxes	90.00	
Interest Collected on		
Delinguent Taxes	301.96	
	301.30	
Penalties Collected on	70.00	
Resident Taxes	73.00	
70744		\$ 23,065.96
TOTAL		φ 23,005.90
Remittances to Treasurer:		
Property Taxes	21,443.69	
Resident Taxes	730.00	
Yield Taxes	85.27	
Interest	301.96	
Penalties	73.00	
Abatements:		
Property Taxes	342.04	
Resident Taxes	90.00	
TOTAL		\$ 23,065.96
LEVY	OF 1970	
Uncollected Taxes –		
As of January 1, 1972		
Poll Taxes	4.00	
Remittances to Treasurer: Poll Taxes	4.00	
Poil Taxes	4.00	
STATE	HEAD TAX	
	OF 1970	
LEVT	OF 1970	
Uncollected Taxes –		
as of January 1, 1972	10.00	
Penalties Collected	1.00	
TOTAL		\$ 11.00
TOTAL		φ 11.00
	-16-	

Remittances to Trea Head Taxes Penalties	surer:	\$	10.00 1.00		
Total				\$ 1 1	1.00
SUMMA	RY OF TAX	X SALES	ACCOU	NTS	
A	S OF DECE	MBER 3	1, 1972		
	1971	1970	1969	1968	1967-66
Taxes Sold to Town During Current Fis-					
cal Year	\$890.04				
Balance of Unre- deemed Taxes					
January 1, 1972		87.61	91.20	124.50	84.25
Unredeemed Taxes At Close of Year	890.04	87.61	91.20	124.50	84.25

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS

Town Officers' Salaries	\$	2,365.60
Town Officers' Expenses		774.23
Election & Registration		447.20
Expenses of Town Hall &		
Other Town Buildings		1,110.07
Police Department		1,965.25
Fire Department		903.89
Damages & Legal Expenses		2,568.30
Health Department		107.60
Stewartstown Manpower Program		4,464.00
Vital Statistics		15.00
Town Dump		1,838.25
Sewer Maintenance		1,154.67
Town Maintenance		
Summer		9,278.29
Town Maintenance		
Winter		14,970.81
Street Lighting		2,879.99
General Expense of		
Highway Department		6,892.91
Town Road Aid		760.69
Brush Fund		77.00
Libraries		294.00
Town Poor		90.77
Old Age Assistance		5,281.57
Parks & Playgrounds		125.00
Cemeteries		644.11
Interest on Temporary		
Loans		745.84
Abatements		616.04
Diamond Pond Road		1,425.00
Duncan Fund – Class V		,,
Highways		3,498.83
Payment of Temporary Loans	1	50,000.00
State Resident Tax		1,842.75
		1,145.82
Taxes Bought by Town		408.97
Bond & Debt Retirement		400.97
Upper Connecticut Valley		950.00
Mental Health Services		950.00
Total Town Payments	\$1	19,642.45
County Tax		8,456.05
	1	
School Appropriations		19,630.11
Total Orders for All Purposes	\$24	47,728.61

DETAILED STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS

Received from Tax Collector: 1972 Property Taxes Resident Taxes Resident Tax Penalties National Bank Stock Taxes Yield Taxes Interest Collected	\$126,685.02 2,960.00 15.00 59.17 1,921.31 2.03	
		\$131,642.53
1971 Property Taxes	\$ 21,443.69	
Resident Taxes Resident Tax	730.00	
Penalties	73.00	
Yield Taxes	85.27	
Interest Collected	301.96	
Tax Sales Redeemed	271.53	
		\$ 22,905.45
1970 Head Tax and Penalty		11.00
1970 Poll Taxes		4.00
1970 &		
1969 Tax Sales Redeemed		300.00
Total Received from Tax Collector		\$154,862.98
Received from Local Sources:		
Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk: Motor Vehicle Permit		
Fees	\$ 11,581.15	
Dog Licenses	118.00	
Filing Fees	21.00	
Pistol License Fees	6.00	
	\$ 11,726.15	
J. C. Kenneth Poore		
Collector Diamond Pond	964.00	
Rent J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton	864.00	
Cemetery Lots, Hollow		
Cemetery	30.00	
Miscellaneous Income:		
Darwin Brooks, Jr., Rebate		

-19-

2 Hrs. Plowing C. Chappell's Road in Error Brown & Saltmarsh, Double Payment of Appointment Book Andrew R. George—Return of premium after Audit on Workman's Comp. Stop payments issued on abate- ments made in error by Select- men to J. Lynch, R. Bolduc & G. Cazzola	\$ 15.00 56.80 55.00 272.74	
Grace Chase, Land purchased from Town	76.08	
Total Received from Local Sources		\$ 13,095.77
Received from State of New Hampshire		
Department of Public Works, Highway Subsidy Emergency Employment Act	\$ 11,206.19	
Funds Town's Share, Business	5,095.00	
Profits Tax Reimbursement, Diamond	15,660.88	
Pond Road, 1972 & 73 Recovery of APTD Funds Refund on OAA Payments Duncan Fund, Class V	2,850.00 68.67 150.66	
Highways Interest and Dividends	5,666.12	
Tax 1972 Savings Bank Tax 1972 Railroad Tax Meals & Rooms Tax	521.11 536.17 264.87 4,514.63	
Yield Tax Reimbursement	2,470.54	
Total Received from State of New Hampshire		\$ 49,004.84
Temporary Loans:		
Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank		50,000.00
Cash on Hand January 1, 1972		\$266,963.59 64,709.16
Total —20–		\$331,672.75

DETAILED STATEMENT OF PAYMENTS

Orders Drawn by Selectmen

Town Officers' Salaries

Harry E. Biron, Selectman Hasen E. Burns, Selectman John D. Angevine, Selectman Burleigh Placey, Overseer of the Poor Evelyn Bohan, Tax Collector Fabiana Parker, Auditor Glenna Rancloes, Auditor Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk & Treasurer J. C. Kenneth Poore, Collector Diamond Pond Rent	\$ \$	400.00 400.00 200.00 400.00 80.00 84.00 350.00 51.60 2,365.60
Town Officers' Expenses		
Brown & Saltmarsh, Selectmen's Supplies Pistol Permit Book Binding Cases	\$	15.50 12.75
Record of Appointment Book Tax Collector's Supplies Homestead Press, Tax		56.80 2.87
Collector's Books Edson C. Eastman, Tax Collector's		9.65
Supplies		17.90
Wheeler & Clark, Office Supplies New Town Seal		20.43 13.75
Lyndonville Office Equipment,		10.70
Repair and Clean Typewriter News and Sentinel,		44.39
Notices, Posters and Checklists		123.79 45.00
Warrant printed in paper Branham Publishing Company,		45.00
Auto Reference Books		18.60
Wilbur G. French, Selectmen's		1 50
Stamp Burleigh Placey, Supplies		1.50 17.03
Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Supplies		30.50
Tax Inventory Envelopes and Postage		46.51
Evelyn Bohan, Tax Collector's Supplies and Postage		71.84

.

Box Rent 1 Year3.20Town Clerk's Envelopes46.45Roger McAllaster,11.95John Angevine,11.95John Angevine,4.12Trip to Tax Meeting15.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Hasen Burns,21.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00\$ 774.23\$ 774.23Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Jo. C. Kenneth Poore,85.00Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance\$ 77.29Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,\$ 251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,\$ 28.99Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office\$ 28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone,176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	Mary Cozzie, Postage Redemption Book		6.30 3.40
Town Clerk's Envelopes46.45Roger McAllaster, Phone Calls11.95John Angevine, Phone Calls4.12Trip to Tax Meeting15.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00\$ 774.23\$ 774.23Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 90.00Johnang Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 90.00Johana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Johed Clerk 1971 and 1972\$ 69.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99 	Earle Ladd, Postmaster,		
Roger McAllaster, Phone Calls11.95John Angevine, Phone Calls4.12Trip to Tax Meeting15.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Hasen Burns, Trip to Tax Meeting21.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00 Election and Registration Norma Burns, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, SupervisorSupervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 90.00Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80\$ 447.20\$ 447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80			
Phone Calls11.95John Angevine,4.12Phone Calls4.12Trip to Tax Meeting15.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Hasen Burns,Trip to Tax MeetingTrip to Tax Meeting21.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention\$0.00Rabina Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 90.00Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore,\$ 90.00Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance\$ 77.29Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,\$ 152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,\$ 28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,\$ 28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,\$ 28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,\$ 76.80Glass for Office Window,\$ 77.69	•		40.45
John Angevine, Phone Calls 4.12 Trip to Tax Meeting 15.00 3 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage 39.00 Hasen Burns, Trip to Tax Meeting 21.00 3 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage 39.00 Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention 36.00 \$ 774.23 Election and Registration Norma Burns, Supervisor \$ 90.00 Fabiana Parker, Supervisor 85.00 Theodore Pariseau, Moderator 36.00 J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 1972 69.40 Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk 38.40 Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk 12.80 New England Telephone, 152.98 New England Telephone, 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Gflice Window, 176.80 Hordice	•		11.95
Trip to Tax Meeting15.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Hasen Burns, Trip to Tax Meeting21.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, SupervisorPabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 90.00J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	John Angevine,		
3 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Hasen Burns, Trip to Tax Meeting21.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00\$ 774.23\$Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, SupervisorPabiana Parker, Supervisor\$90.00#ation Parrish, Supervisor91.00\$Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$92.00#ation Parrish, Supervisor93.00\$1. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office\$77.29Paint & BrushesColebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80			
Hasen Burns, Trip to Tax Meeting 21.00 3 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage 39.00 Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention 36.00 \$ 774.23 Election and Registration Norma Burns, Supervisor \$ 90.00 Fabiana Parker, Supervisor \$ 90.00 Marion Parrish, Supervisor \$ 90.00 Marion Parrish, Supervisor \$ 90.00 Marion Parrish, Supervisor \$ 90.00 J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 1972 69.40 Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Thibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office \$ 77.29 Paint & Brushes 152.98 Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene 251.72 N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall 42.92 Public Service Company, Office Lights Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			
Trip to Tax Meeting21.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage39.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00\$ 774.23\$Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$ 60.00J. C. Kenneth Poore,\$ 90.00Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance\$ 77.29Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,\$ 77.29Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,\$ 28.99Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office\$ 28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,\$ 06.00Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,\$ 176.80			39.00
3 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention39.00 36.00Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention\$774.23Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor Fabiana Parker, Supervisor Marion Parrish, Supervisor Theodore Pariseau, Moderator J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 1972 Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk Leatrice Cong, Inc., Lights at Town Hall Leights Siren Office Telephone, Office Telephone Glass for Office Window,39.00 39.003 Trips to Lawyers and Mileage Siren Glass for Office Window,36.00	•		21.00
Lynne Placey, Town Clerk's Convention36.00\$774.23Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor\$90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$5.00Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore,Ballot Clerk 1971 and 1972Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80\$ 447.20\$ 447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance\$ 77.29Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,\$ 251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,\$ 28.99Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,\$ 0fficeOffice Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,\$ 176.80			
S774.23Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor\$Fabiana Parker, Supervisor\$Marion Parrish, Supervisor\$Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80\$447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office\$Golebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99 SirenSiren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80			
Election and RegistrationNorma Burns, Supervisor\$ 90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor85.00Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore,81lot Clerk 1971 and 1972Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80\$ 447.20\$ 447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & ApplianceGas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,251.72Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,12.92Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,0ffice Telephone,Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,Glass for Office Window,	,		
Norma Burns, Supervisor\$90.00Fabiana Parker, Supervisor90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor85.00Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80\$447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil — Town Office\$77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80		\$	774.23
Fabiana Parker, Supervisor90.00Marion Parrish, Supervisor85.00Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80K447.20Thibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	Election and Registration		
Marion Parrish, Supervisor85.00Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	Norma Burns, Supervisor	\$	90.00
Theodore Pariseau, Moderator36.00J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80Kather Town Ballot Clerk12.80Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	Fabiana Parker, Supervisor		
J. C. Kenneth Poore, Ballot Clerk 1971 and 1972 Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Thibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office Gas & Oil – Town Office Solebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall Public Service Company, Office Lights Siren Office Telephone, Office Telephone, Office Telephone, Glass for Office Window,			
Ballot Clerk 1971 and 197269.40Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk38.40Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80\$ 447.20 Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Thibeault Gas & ApplianceGas & Oil – Town Office77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,28.99Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80			36.00
Glenna Rancloes, Ballot Clerk 38.40 Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk 12.80 \$ 447.20 \$ 447.20 Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Thibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office \$ 77.29 Paint & Brushes 152.98 Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene 251.72 N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., 42.92 Public Service Company, Office 28.99 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, 0ffice Telephone Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			00.40
Nancy Adams, Ballot Clerk12.80Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk12.80Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk12.80\$ 447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town OfficeGas & Oil – Town Office77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80			
Evelyn Hunt, Ballot Clerk 12.80 Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk 12.80 \$ 447.20 \$ 447.20 Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Thibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office \$ 77.29 Paint & Brushes 152.98 Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene 251.72 N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., 42.92 Public Service Company, Office 28.99 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, 0ffice Telephone Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			
Leatrice Bacon, Ballot Clerk 12.80 \$ 447.20 Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Buildings Thibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office \$ 77.29 Paint & Brushes 152.98 Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene 251.72 N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall 42.92 Public Service Company, Office Lights 28.99 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			
\$447.20Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town OfficeGas & Oil – Town Office77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,100			
Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town BuildingsThibeault Gas & Appliance Gas & Oil – Town Office77.29 77.29 Paint & BrushesColebrook Oil Co., Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99 26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80			
Thibeault Gas & ApplianceGas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,42.92Public Service Company, Office28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,0ffice TelephoneOffice Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,Glass for Office Window,		\$	447.20
Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,21.22Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,0ffice TelephoneOffice Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,Glass for Office Window,	Expenses of Town Hall & Other Town Build	lings	
Gas & Oil – Town Office\$ 77.29Paint & Brushes152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,152.98Colebrook Oil Co.,251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,21.22Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,0ffice TelephoneOffice Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,Glass for Office Window,	Thibeault Gas & Appliance		
Colebrook Oil Co.,251.72Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc.,42.92Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone,0ffice TelephoneOffice Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company,Glass for Office Window,		\$	77.29
Town Office Oil and Kerosene251.72N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall42.92Public Service Company, Office Lights28.99Siren26.25New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	Paint & Brushes		152.98
N. H. Electric Coop., Inc., Lights at Town Hall 42.92 Public Service Company, Office Lights 28.99 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,	•		
Lights at Town Hall 42.92 Public Service Company, Office Lights 28.99 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			251.72
Public Service Company, Office 28.99 Lights 28.25 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, 0 Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			12 02
Lights 28.99 Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,	0		42.92
Siren 26.25 New England Telephone, Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			28.99
New England Telephone, Office Telephone176.80G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,176.80	•		
Office Telephone 176.80 G. B. Currier Company, Glass for Office Window,			
Glass for Office Window,			176.80
	· ·		00.70
Cleaning Supplies and Paint 26.72	Cleaning Supplies and Paint -22-		26.72

L. Parkhurst, Lumber and Nails	\$	70.65
P. A. Hicks, Materials for		
Town Office		29.75
Almon Young, Stovewood for		00.00
Town Hall		30.00
Philip Burns, Christmas Lights		8.55
Guy Crawford, Replacing Broken Glass		9.00
Brooks Auto, Bolts		.72
Rope for Flag Pole		4.95
John Angevine, Welder		10.00
Lynne Placey, Cleaning Town		
Office and Wax		7.00
Thomas Pryor, New Sign for		
Town Office		65.00
Anatole Houle, Repairing Chimney		54.25
Shatney's Furnace Repairing		11.60
Solomon's, Cleaning Supplies		1.64
Evelyn Hunt, Janitor, Town Hall		22.50
Supplies, Town Hall		.79
Supplies, Town Hall		.75
	\$	1,110.07
		•
Police Department		
	\$	1 118 00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service	\$	1,118.00 547.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service •	\$	1,118.00 547.00 103.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service	\$	547.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment	\$	547.00 103.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment,	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment,	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders	_	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders	_	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders	_	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department	_	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept.	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept. Ed Poupart's	_	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept.	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25 112.00 110.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept. Ed Poupart's Grease Fire—The Spa Truck Fire North of Riverside	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept. Ed Poupart's Grease Fire—The Spa	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25 112.00 110.00 118.00
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept. Ed Poupart's Grease Fire—The Spa Truck Fire North of Riverside Truck Fire North of Riverside Truck Fire North of Village Colebrook Village Fire Dept. Evelyn Placey's	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25 112.00 110.00 118.00 124.00 125.50
Harry Dyer Sr., Police Service Leo Lachance, Police Service • Burleigh Placey, Police Service Ellingwood's, Police Clothing Linsky Uniforms, Equipment Central Equipment, 280 Streamers w/ holders Special Halloween Police Fire Department Beecher Falls Volunteer Fire Dept. Ed Poupart's Grease Fire—The Spa Truck Fire North of Riverside Truck Fire North of Village Colebrook Village Fire Dept.	\$	547.00 103.00 15.30 38.45 21.50 122.00 1,965.25 1,965.25 112.00 110.00 118.00 124.00

Fremont Harriman,		
Forest Fire Service	\$	12.96
Fire Warden	Ψ	16.50
Gary Richardson,		10.50
Forest Fire Service		22.80
	\$	903.89
Damages & Legal Expenses		
New Hampshire City & Town Clerks'		
Association Dues	\$	8.00
New Hampshire Tax Collectors' Assoc.	Ψ	0.00
Dues 1971		5.00
Dues 1972		5.00
Association of N. H. Assessors,		
Dues 1973		10.00
Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk		
653 Motor Vehicle Permits		653.00
1972 Dog Licenses		9.80
Preparing Tax Inventory Blanks		40.00
Secretarial Work for Selectmen		30.00
Bookkeeping for Stewartstown		
Manpower Program		36.00
Andrew R. George,		
Balance Due		2.00
Workmens Compensation Ins. 1972		169.00
Workmens Compensation Ins. 1973		210.00
Liability Insurance		62.00
George M. Stevens, Bonds for		145.00
Town Officers		145.00
Dallas W. Chase, Preparation of		50.00
1971 Town Report Warren Bartlett.		50.00
Transfer Cards		50.00
24 Cards @.50 and postage		12.32
State Tax Commission,		12.02
Law Book Supplement		5.25
Expenses Tax Comm. Employees		0.20
Re-Evaluation of County Farm		141.14
Report of Ownership of Boats		1.68
A. Gladys MacLean, List of		
Decedents		.20
N. H. Municipal Association,		
Selectmen's Handbook		5.00
Paul McKinnon,		
Preambulation of Town Boundaries		26.00

Jeanine Burns,		
Copying Tax Blotter		50.00
Copying Town Records		27.00
Work on Town Records		28.36
Constance Angevine, Work on Town Records		24.00
Hasen Burns, Moving Town Records from		
Dallas Chase and Gas Tank on Town		
Office		20.00
John Angevine, Moving Safe to Town Office		15.00
4 Hedghog Noses		2.00
M/S Printing, IM Checks		47.70
325 Town Reports		441 40
325 Ballots		441.40
Inventory Notices & 50 Copies of		41.20
Diamond Pond Leases		41.30 106.75
Tax Bills and Window Envelopes		100.75
Evelyn R. Bohan,		.20
Collecting 1970 Head Tax 1972 Resident Taxes		.20
1972 Resident Taxes		3.80
Making Resident Tax Book		15.00
Mary Cozzie, Collecting Resident Taxes		10.40
Mary Cozzie, Concerning Mesident Taxes		
	\$	2,568.30
Stewartstown Manpower Program		
Stewartstown Manpower Program,		
Special Checking Account, To		
Be Totally Refunded by Federal		
Government. Paul McKinnon		
Employee	\$	4,464.00
	Ŷ	1, 10 1100
Health Department		
Robert Burns, Health Officer 1971	\$	50.00
1972	*	50.00
State of N. H., Water Samples		7.60
	\$	107.60
Vital Statistics		
Lynne O. Placey, Town Clerk,		
Recording 1972 Vital Sta-		
tistics, 22 @ \$.50	\$	11.00
Sending copies as required		
by law 16 @\$.25		4.00
	\$	15.00
	. D	121101

-25-

Town Dump

Town of Canaan, Vermont one-half the cost of Maintaining the		
Canaan Dump for use by Stewart town residents		5 1,838.25
Sewer Mainte	nance	
Daniel Hebert, Work on Sewer Beecher Construction, Compressor Earl Lyons, Backhoe	\$	882.42 56.25 216.00
	9	5 1,154.67
TOWN MAINTENANC	CE – SUMMER	
Howard Carney, We	st Side Agent	
Howard Carney, Summer Roads Earl Lyons, Dozer	\$ 4,695.55 48.00 \$ 4,743.55	
Frank Rancloes, East		
Frank Rancloes, Summer Roads Nugent Motor, Moving Tractor Daniel Hebert	\$ 4,479.72 35.00 20.02 \$ 4,534.74	
Total Summer Maintenance		9,278.29
		, ,_,_,
Howard Carney – We		
Howard Carney, Winter Roads Winter Sand	\$ 5,599.30 1,025.00	
	\$ 6,624.30	
Plowing Sn	now	
Gary Owen, Plowing Snow	\$ 22.00	
Harry Biron, Plowing Snow – School Yard	50.00	

Gilles Blanchard, School Yard	Plowing Snow— Frank Rancloes, Eas	 \$ t Sic	76.00 148.00 de Agent		
Frank Rancloes,					
	Winter Sand		859.55		
		\$	8,198.51		
Total Winter Mai	ntenance			\$	14,970.81
	Street Ligh	nts			
Public Service Co	o. of New				
Hampshire, Street Lights				\$	2,630.90
Blinker New Hampshire	Electric Cooper				67.79
ative, Inc., Str		181.30			
				\$	2,879.99
Gene	eral Expense of High	way	Departmen	it	
R. C. Hazelton C	'ompany				
Complete Clu	tch Assembly Sande	er		\$	
Sprocket for S Colebrook Feed					19.47
3 Tons of Roa Chloride	ad Salt				120.00 747.50
L. M. Pike, Cold		560.43			
City of Berlin, 10 New England Me	00 feet of 8 in. Pipe tal Culvert,				195.75
Culverts					619.18 14.92
Coupling Ban Culvert, Bisho			1,332.00		
Nugent Motor Co	ompany, p Brook Road				2,756.00
International Sal	t Co.				468.48
St. Johnsbury Tr Collars	rucking, 2 Culvert				7.45
				¢	6,892.91
				Ψ	0,002.01

Town Road Aid	
Treasurer, State of New Hampshire, Town's Share	\$ 760.69
Brush Fund	
Paul McKinnon, Cutting Brush	\$ 77.00
Libraries	
J. C. Kenneth Poore, Trustee of Library Fund 1971 1972 Norma Burns, Librarian Salary Work in Library with EEA Employee Evelyn Hunt, Librarian, Salary 2–Coos County History Books for Libraries	\$ 25.00 25.00 85.50 27.20 80.00 51.30
	\$ 294.00
Town Poor	
G. B. Currier Company, Groceries Solomon's Store, Groceries	\$ 56.84 33.93
	\$ 90.77
Old Age Assistance	
State of New Hampshire, Old Age Assistance State of New Hampshire, Disabled Assistance	\$ 2,754.69 2,526.88
	\$ 5,281.57
Parks and Playgrounds	
Michael Daley, Care of Park	\$ 125.00
Interest on Temporary Loans	
Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank, Interest on Temporary Loans	\$ 745.84
Abatements	
Sherman Shatney	\$ 110.51

Paniamin Lav	\$	22.87			
Benjamin Lay Giseldo Cazzola	*	64.49			
		20.41			
Dennis Schiff		116.96			
Evelyn Placey		110.90			
Royal Bolduc, John Lynch, Giseldo Cazzola,		070 74			
abatement made incorrectly by Selectmen		272.74			
Helen Bushey, Refund on unused car regis-					
tration		8.06			
	\$	616.04			
Diamond Pond Road					
E. Hawatan Bau, Maintenance of Dismond					
E. Hampton Roy, Maintenance of Diamond					
Pond Road to be reimbursed by State		4 405 00			
of New Hampshire	\$	1,425.00			
Duncan Fund – Class V Highway Maintena	ance	•			
Frank Rancloes Account, Holden Hill,		-			
Road Repairs, Leading to David Herres					
Residence	¢	3,498.83			
Residence	φ	3,490.03			
0					
Cemeteries					
J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton 1971	\$	329.44			
J. C. Kenneth Poore, Sexton 1972	÷	169.95			
Lawn Mower Purchased from H. J. Lemieux		135.00			
		9.72			
Spa, Gas f <mark>or</mark> Lawn Mower		9.72			
	_				
	\$	644.11			
Payment of Temporary Loans					
Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank,					
Temporary Loans	\$50,000.00				
State Resident Tax					
Treasurer, State of New Hampshire					
	¢	1 450 90			
1971 Resident Tax	Ф	1,450.80			
1972 Resident Tax	391.95				
	\$	1,842.75			
Taxes Bought By Town					
Evelyn R. Bohan, Tax Collector,					
Taxes Bought by Town	\$	1,145.82			
Taxos Bought by Town	Ŷ	.,			

Bona a Bebt netirement									
Treasurer, State of New Hampshire, Bond & Debt Retirement, 1971	\$	408.97							
Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Services									
Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service, Town's Share	\$ 950.00								
Total Town Payments	\$119,642.45								
County Tax									
Coos County Treasurer, 1972 County Tax	\$ 8,456.05								
School Tax									
Stewartstown School District, 1971–72 Stewartstown School District, 1972–73		1,630.11 3,000.00							
Total School Payments	\$119,630.11								
Total Orders Drawn for All Purposes Cash on Hand December 31, 1972	\$247,728.61 83,944.14								
Grand Total	\$331,672.75								

Bond & Debt Retirement

TREASURER'S REPORT

Cash on hand January 1, 1972 Received from all sources	\$ 64,709.16 266,963.59					
Total Receipts Less Selectmen's Orders Paid	\$331,672.75 247,728.61					
Cash on hand January 1, 1973	\$ 83,944.14					
SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS						
Cash on hand January 1, 1972 Tax Collector Local Sources State of New Hampshire Temporary Loans	\$ 64,709.16 154,862.98 13,095.77 49,004.84 50,000.00					
	\$331,672.75					

AUDITORS' REPORT

We hereby certify that we have audited the accounts of the Town of Stewartstown and find them correct and properly vouched.

> GLENNA RANCLOES FABIANA PARKER

Auditors of Town of Stewartstown

January 22, 1973

	Balance of Income End of Year	.35	98.41		99.85	62.42	17.37	61.68		52.78	39.57	32.11	69.30	39.48	28.25	113.42	45.80	17.14
	Expended During Year	2.57	10.00		14.90	2.50	2.30	2.50		.50	2.50	.50	2.50	3.50	2.50	2.90	2.50	2.30
RTSTOWN	Income During Year	2.57	14.95		24.95	8.00	5.80	7.96		7.43	6.88	11.28	8.32	6.93	6.33	11.58	7.72	4.37
TOWN OF STEWARTSTOWN	Balance End of Year	50.35	298.41		499.85	162.42	117.37	161.68		152.78	139.57	232.11	169.30	139.48	128.25	313.42	156.80	117.14
TOWN	New Fund Created																	
	Balance Beginning of Year	50.35	293.46		489.80	156.92	113.87	156.22		145.85	135.19	221.33	163.48	136.05	124.42	304.74	151.58	115.07
	Name of Trust Fund	Charles Lang	Benjamin Drew	Thomas H. Van	Dyke, Jr.	Fred H. Noyes	Almeda Flanders	Fred Flanders	Almeda Flanders	(A. L. Owen Lot)	Erwin Haines	Jennie Owen	Benjamin Abbott	Arthur Forest	Fay Richardson	Levi Brooks	Alva Sawyer	George Sawyer
	Date of Creation	5/ 3/24	5/ 3/24	7/ /68		5/ 5/41	8/26/41	8/26/41	8/ 3/41			1941-47	10/14/48	10/18/45	9/ 4/51	1950	8/14/54	8/11/54

REPORT OF THE TRUST FUNDS

-32-

	12.19		12.90	31.67	68.28	26.36	21.98	2.41	22.64	18.01	32.81		11.61		13.44		66.				6.18		
	2.60		3.00	2.30	7.50	2.50	3.25	3.50	2.50	2.25	50		9.00		2.30		2.50		5.10		2.50		
	7.02		5.62	6.48	13.36	6.24	6.08	4.65	6.07	4.40	6.48		5.84		5.61		2.59		5.10		3.98		
	112.19		112.90	131.67	268.28	126.36	121.98	102.41	122.64	118.01	132.81		111.61		113.44		50.99		100.00		106.18		
	37.77		10.28	27.49	62.42	122.62	19.15	01.26	119.07	15.86	126.83		114.77		110.13		50.90		100.00		104.70		
Leona Rawling	Gilbert)	& Charles		Velson Boudle 1	Sadie V. Wood 2		chemin	*				Walter & Alice		Joyce Knapp for		Joyce Knapp for	Chandler Knapp	K. Poore for	Addie Hutchinson 1	George A. Gerry		Jovce Knapp.	
	Gilbert)		Heath	-	•,	-	_		_	_	Ŭ	-	Flanders	ĺ	Oscar	Ĺ	Chand	_	Addie	Georg	Fund	Jovce	
2/18/58		2/18/56		7/13/56	12/24/59	6/18/62	5/20	9/ 3	10/18/63	6/10/	10/ 3/	2/16/		12/28/67		12/28/67		4/11/68		1970		1970	

31 Jon

-33-

8.20	\$1,102.74	Tewksbury		
1.71	\$110.43	ception of Amos aders Bank.	-	
8.20 1.71	\$239.74	ik with the ex irmers and Tr		
108.20 50.00 50.00	\$50.00 4,963.74	 Care of Cemetery Lots All invested at Colebrook Guaranty Savings Bank with the exception of Amos Tewksbury and Herman Harriman invested at Colebrook Farmers and Traders Bank. 	¢	
100.00	\$4,784.43	netery Lots Colebrook (arriman inve		
1971 Mr. & Mrs. Charlie Holden 1972 Herman Harriman*	TOTALS	Purpose of Fund – Care of Cemetery Lots How Invested: All invested at Colebrook and Herman Harriman inv		

FINANCIAL REPORT

WEST STEWARTSTOWN WATER PRECINCT

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1972

Assets

Cash on Hand Fixed Assets Uncollected Water Rent	\$ 17.16 84,800.00 710.57
Total Assets	\$85,527.73
Liabilities	
Notes Outstanding Excess of Assets Over Liabilities	\$57,529.29 27,998.44
Grand Total	\$85,527.73
Receipts	
Water Rent, Other Cash on Hand, January 1, 1972	\$ 6,579.00 .00
Grand Total	\$ 6,579.00
Payments	
Salaries and Wages Collector's Fees and Postage Canaan Water Insurance Repairs and Maintenance Colebrook Guaranty Bank Auditors Office Supplies Overdraft FHA Payment No. 5 Total Payments	\$ 289.86 327.01 939.57 109.00 692.74 72.00 20.00 31.27 495.39 3,585.00 \$ 6,561.84 17 16
Cash on Hand at End of Year	17.16
Grand Total	\$ 6,579.00

Schedule of Precinct Property

Precinct Real Estate Valuation (Taken from Tax Rolls)

\$646,338.00

Commissioners: HARRY DYER, SR. ROBERT J. BURNS SHERMAN DORMAN

1971 – 1972

SCHOOL REPORT

STEWARTSTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

OFFICERS

Moderator THEODORE W. PARISEAU

> Clerk EVELYN B. HUNT

Treasurer EVELYN B. HUNT

Auditors

FABIANA PARKER

GLENNA RANCLOES

School Board

LEATRICE BACON, CHM. EMILY HAYNES LOUISE McKINNON Term Expires 1973 Term Expires 1974 Term Expires 1975

Superintendent of Schools Stephen E. Dehl

Business Administrator Perley E. Davis

PROCEEDINGS OF SCHOOL DISTRICT MEETING

March 7, 1972

Meeting was called to order by Moderator Theodore Pariseau for voting. Warrant was read and a recess declared until 2:00 p. m.

Meeting called to order at 2:25 p. m. and warrant was discussed:

2. Motion made by Emily Haynes and seconded by Virginia Hurley to increase School Clerk's pay from \$12. to \$24. Voted yes.

Motion made by Burleigh Placey and seconded by Thomas Hurley to increase School Treasurer's pay from \$84. to \$100. Voted no.

Motion made by Mary Strathdee and seconded by Nancy Adams to increase School Treasurer's pay from \$84. to \$150. Voted yes.

- 3. Reports accepted. Voted yes.
- 4. The budget was explained by Mr. Dehl. Questions were asked by Barbara Betjemann, Virginia Hurley, Burleigh Placey, and Mary Strathdee. Motion made by Nancy Adams and seconded by Connie Angevine to accept the budget. Voted yes.
- Federal and State money explained by Mr. Dehl. Questions and comments by Burleigh Placey, Virginia Hurley, Norma Burns, and Mary Strathdee. Voted yes.
- 6. The Pre-School Program was discussed. A resolution suggested by Mr. Pariseau and made by Virginia Hurley was seconded by Barbara Betjemann to have an article in the fall warrant to raise money for the Pre-School Program at the rate of \$120.00 per child. Voted yes.

Theodore Pariseau suggested holding the Town and School meetings in the evening so more people could attend but there was opposition because of the night shift at the Beecher Falls Factory and farm work.

Motion made by Thomas Hurley and seconded by John Owen to adjourn. Voted yes.

Results of voting:	Moderator	Theodore Pariseau	64
· ·	Treasurer	Evelyn Hunt	182
	Clerk	Evelyn Hunt	184
	Auditors	Glenna Rancloes	193
		Fabiana Parker	196
	School Board	Louise McKinnon	145

These elected officers took the oath of office.

EVELYN HUNT School Clerk

STEWARTSTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARRANT

The State of New Hampshire

To the Inhabitants of the School District in the Town of Stewartstown qualified to vote in district affairs.

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall in said district on Tuesday, the 6th day of March, 1973, at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon at which time the polls will be open, followed by the business meeting at 2:00 o'clock in the afternoon, to act upon the following subjects:

- To bring in your ballots for the election of School District Officers to be elected by ballot for the School District of Stewartstown for the ensuing year(s).
- 2. To determine the salaries of the Officers and fix the compensation of any agents of the district.
- 3. To hear the reports of Agents, Auditors, Committees, or Officers chosen and pass any vote relating thereto.
- 4. To see if the District will vote to create an Authorized Regional Enrollment Area (AREA) planning committee consisting of three qualified voters of whom at least one shall be a member of the School Board.
- 5. To see if the District will vote to authorize the School Board to make application for and to accept, on behalf of the district, any or all grants or offers for educational purposes which may now or hereafter be forthcoming from the State of New Hampshire and/or the United States.
- 6. To see what sum of money the District will vote to raise and appropriate for the support of schools, for the payment of salaries for school district officials and agents and for the payment of the statutory obligations of the District.
- 7. To transact any other business that may legally come before this meeting.

Given under our hands at said Stewartstown this 16th day of February, 1973.

LEATRICE BACON, Chairman EMILY HAYNES LOUISE McKINNON Stewartstown School Board

A true copy of warrant – attest: L LEATRICE BACON, Chairman EMILY HAYNES LOUISE McKINNON –40– Stewartstown School Board

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

The school district has been indeed fortunate this past year to have a number of townspeople give of their time and services to improve the school programs.

Through the efforts of Howard Carney, Michael Berry, Jesse Carney, Earl Towle, Keith Haynes, Noel Bedard, Noel Bedard Jr., David Bedard, Rex Haynes, and Hazen Burns, a fire escape was built in the West Side School cafeteria. This has improved greatly the safety of all youngsters eating in the school cafeteria.

Mrs. Mae Drew has given freely of her time the past two years to come to school and work with youngsters needing extra help in reading. Through her efforts a number of youngsters having difficulty in class have been able to keep up with their work and consequently remain with their grade level.

Mrs. Barbara Betjemann is providing art services in the school on a volunteer basis.

At the Hollow School, a variety of art and audio-visual materials were purchased this past year due to the efforts of the townspeople who organized and sponsored a Flea Market, proceeds of which went to the Hollow School. Co-chairmen of this event were Lynn Placey and Diane Pierce.

The town certainly is fortunate in having these people give of their services and a special thank you is extended.

Last June, the West Side School lost the services of a veteran teacher. Mrs. Cleora Richardson, a teacher with 48 years of experience retired from the teaching profession. Her dedication and devotion to teaching youngsters will always be appreciated and remembered by her pupils and the town.

This year, the voters of the town are being asked to form a planning committee to investigate the possibility of developing tuition contracts for pupils in grades 9-12 in the Stewartstown School District. This committee, if approved, would make a report at the next annual meeting as to the need or desirability of entering into tuition contracts with neighboring school districts.

The closing of Our Lady of Grace Elementary School this coming June will result in the district having to absorb an additional number of resident pupils into the public schools. Although the youngsters will be able to be housed in the present schools in grades 1–8, this means that maximum capacity will be reached in the West Side School with over 100 pupils and near maximum capacity will be reached in the Hollow School with over 30 pupils Any substantial pupil increase in the future will

require either a new school facility or a major expansion of existing school buildings or seeking out other alternatives. It appears for the present, however, that the district does have some time in which to investigate possibilities.

Pupil services now being offered in the school district include speech therapy, health services, guidance services for grades 7 and 8, multi-media services, psychological counseling and testing services, library services, art services on a volunteer program and it is planned that music will be included on a part-time basis for the next school year.

The district has made major steps the past few years towards meeting state minimum requirements for elementary schools and the school board is to be commended for its action in implementing those requirements.

> Respectfully submitted, Stephen E. Dehl Superintendent of Schools

GUIDANCE COUNSELOR'S REPORT

Guidance is a continuous developmental process which ideally should enable each student to understand himself better, to make sound decisions, to develop healthy attitudes and to achieve an awareness of his responsibility to himself and to others. Listed below are <u>some</u> of the activities directed toward these ends which have been initiated during the past year.

- 1. Each student's Cumulative Record Folder is being updated.
- 2. A Profile Sheet has been developed for each student in Grades 9–11 inclusive. This sheet contains information gathered concerning the student's ability, aptitudes, achievements, attitudes, interests and personality. The development of these sheets is an ongoing process with new information being added as it is obtained.
- 3. A Career Development Program utilizing one period a week has been instituted in the Pittsburg seventh and eighth grades and the Stewartstown eighth grades.
- 4. A follow-up by phone or personal contact has been made in the case of each of last year's Seniors in order to ascertain exactly what they are doing as related to what they had intended to do.
- 5. A system of referrals for handling special cases in cooperation with the Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Services Inc. has been set up. Each referral necessitates at least one home visitation on the part of the Guidance Counselor.
- In a number of cases, evening interviews have been held with students (past or present) and /or their parents concerning Educational or Career plans.
- 7. A Guidance Inventory Survey intended to predict needed changes which could possibly <u>prevent</u> certain students from becoming problems or drop-outs has been administered to every Pittsburg student in grades 9–11 and to Freshmen in Colebrook.
- 8. A Strong Vocational Interest Survey has been administered to individual Seniors who were completely unsure of future plans. The results of these Surveys have been discussed with each student concerned.
- 9. Arrangements have been made for students to meet with representatives of colleges and also representatives of the Armed Services.
- 10. The Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery has been

administered to nearly all students 9–12 and the results are being discussed with each student concerned.

- 11. Juniors planning to continue their schooling after finishing high school took the Preliminary Scholastic Aptitude Tests in October and the results have been discussed with each student concerned.
- 12. Over <u>200</u> individual interviews have been held with Seniors concerning their future educational or career plans.
- 13. Similar conferences with Freshmen, Sophomores and Juniors have been, or are being, held.
- 14. Educational and Career Information has been made increasingly available to students.

I hope that the activities described above will give you some idea of the work that is being done in Guidance.

Respectfully submitted, JOHN M. SHIELDS Guidance Counselor

SCHOOL HEALTH

The objectives of a school health program are to perform the necessary functions to maintain and promote good health for all the pupils in our schools.

Each year the following services are performed: checking heights and weights; testing vision and hearing, physical examinations for students in grades 4, 8, 11 and those participating in athletic sports, T. B. skin tests as recommended by the T. B. Association which included all personnel in Supervisory Union 7 this year, immunizations as needed, pre-school clinics which include immunizations, physicals, T. B. and urine tests, homevisits for follow-through health care as deemed necessary, promotion of good mental health with the assistance of Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Services, first aid and emergency care, health teaching and counseling, and continuous supervision of general health.

The Matching Fund Dental Program sponsored by state and local monies was utilized again this year with many students receiving dental care.

This year the P. T. O. sponsored a program on venereal disease to junior and senior high school students through the Department of Public Health.

North Country Education Services again provided speech therapy for all students in Supervisory Union 7 requiring help.

The American Cancer Society provided films for all junior and senior girls and their mothers for early detection and treatment of cancer.

Two hygienists from the Dental Bureau in Concord presented a very thorough and interesting program on the care of teeth to all elementary students in the area including St. Albert's School and Our Lady of Grace Elementary School.

There was a pre-school hearing and vision clinic in May sponsored by the N. H. Division of Public Health for early detection of defects.

Each year we strive to improve the health program. With everyone working together, it is hoped that we can achieve our goal in this endeavor.

> Respectfully submitted, SARAH CUMMINGS, R. N. School Nurse

-45-

FINANCIAL REPORT

1971 - 1972

RECEIPTS

Revenue from Local Sources:		
Current Appropriation	\$124,830.11	
Rent	33.00	
Other Revenue from		
Local Sources	120.22	
		\$124,983.33
Revenue from State Sources:		
Foundation Aid	27,573.20	
Intellectually Retarded	167.78	
Sweepstakes	2,372.48	
Child Benefit Services	217.68	
Other Revenue from		
State Sources	399.69	
		\$ 30,730.83
Revenue from Federal Sources:		
National Forest Reserve	107.80	
School Lunch & Special	107.00	
Milk Program	2,969.07	
Wink Program		
		\$ 3,076.87
Missellen sous Assounds		+ -,
Miscellaneous Accounts: Refunds	167.09	
Refunds	167.09	
		167.09
		107.09
Total Receipts		\$158,958.12
Cash on Hand July 1, 1971		946.21
Cash on Hand July 1, 1971		
GRAND TOTAL RECEIPTS		\$159,904.33
GRAND FOTAL RECEIL TO		\$100,001.00
EXPENDIT	URES	
Local:		
Administration	\$ 1,206.90	
Instruction	45,877.53	
Health Services	430.47	
Pupil Transportation	17,565.00	

Operation of Plant Maintenance of Plant Fixed Charges	7,829.38 3,409.39 3,711.00	
School Lunch & Special Milk Program	5,189.82	
Capital Outlay	1,470.51	
Outgoing Transfer Accounts	67,863.61	
		\$154,553.61
Total Expenditures		\$154,553.61
Balance on Hand June 30, 1972		5,350.72
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES		\$159,904.33

AUDITORS' REPORT

This is to certify that we have examined the books, vouchers, bank statements and other financial records of the School District of Stewartstown, of which this is a true summary for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1972 and find them correctly cast and properly vouched.

> GLENNA D. RANCLOES FABIANA PARKER Auditors

June 30, 1972

DETAILED STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES

1971 - 1972

ADMINISTRATION:

Salaries of District Officers: Bacon, Leatrice Burns, Norma Fellows, Herman Haynes, Emily Hunt, Evelyn Pariseau, Theodore Parker, Fabiana Parrish, Marion	\$ 150.00 10.00 150.00 150.00 180.00 24.00 30.00 10.00		
Rancloes, Glenna	20.00		
		\$	724.00
Contracted Services for			
Administration: Frizzell, Joyce	100.00		
112261, 30900			100.00
		\$	100.00
Other Expenses of District Officers:			
Cummings, Sarah	6.47		
Davis, Perley	25.33		
Dehl, Stephen	92.25		
Edson C. Eastman Co.	30.70		
Educational Policy Service	23.85		
Internal Revenue Service	84.65 19.23		
M /S Printing and Advertising	6.75		
N. C. E. S. N. H. School Boards	0.70		
Association	75.00		
News and Sentinel	5.00		
G. M. Stevens and Son	10.00		
Treasurer, State of N. H.	3.67		
		\$	382.90
		Ψ	002.00
INSTRUCTION:			
Salaries of Principals:			
Bibbo, James	6,900.00		
Donovan, Eugene	2,456.52		
		\$	9,356.52
_48-	_	Ψ	0,000.02

-48-

Salaries of Teachers: Gould, Dorothy Gray, Addie Nowell, Diana Richardson, Cleora Shields, Arlene	\$ 6,799.92 6,714.00 5,941.75 7,150.00 3,394.46	
Salaries of Substitutes: Berry, Virginia Cummings, Lois Drew, Mae Gray, Barbara Shane, Gail Shields, Arlene Weir, Hallie	1,548.00 54.00 30.50 18.00 18.00 125.00 175.00	\$30,000.13
Textbooks: Harcourt, Brace, and Jovanovich Holt, Rinehart and Winston Litton Educational Pub- lishing Silver Burdett	10.70 39.07 30.30 44.15	\$ 1,968.50
Library & Audio Visual: Bro-Dart Inc. Educational Reading Ser- vice Encyclopedia Brittanica Company Follett Library Book Co. Gaylord Brothers Highsmith Company M/S Printing and Advertising Martin Murray Corp. National Library Service	19.50 72.22 83.00 145.22 43.80 30.52 3.00 72.50 179.00	\$ 124.22
Teaching Supplies: Allyn and Bacon American Education Publi- cations Career Development Service Cenco Instruments Corp. -49-	15.41 61.55 35.33 57.60	\$ 648.76

Economy Company	\$ 269.94		
Edmund Scientific Company Follett Educational Publi-	13.50		
cations Harcourt, Brace and Jo-	20.43		
vanovich	195.53		
D. C. Heath and Company	5.87		
Holt, Rinehart and Winston	145.55		
Litton Educational Publish- ing	63.31		
MacMillan Company	92.78		
Mainco School Supply	975.65		
New Dimensions in Education	115.06		
Noble and Noble Publishers	4.84		
Rand McNally and Company	18.42		
Random House	17.65		
Scott, Foresman and Company	230.50 10.14		
Sears, Roebuck and Company Silver Burdett Company	110.14		
U. N. H.	4.21		
0.11.11.	 		
		\$ 3	2,463.35
Contracted Services:			
Colebrook School District	21.60		
N. C. E. S.	326.08		
New Hampshire Network	81.00 72.60		
Pittsburg School District	 /2.00		
		\$	501.28
Other Expenses for			
Instruction:	0.15		
Allyn and Bacon, Inc.	2.15 25.00		
Berry, Virginia Bibbo, James	34.95		
Continental Press	25.19		
Cummings, Sarah	5.69		
Donovan, Eugene	25.00		
Ducret's Gun Shop	42.01		
Holt and Sons	26.80		
Hunt, Evelyn	8.00 56.00		
Hurley, Virginia M/S Printing and	50.00		
Advertising	35.00		
Milliken Publishing Company	27.21		
News and Sentinel	36.47		
Nowell, Diana	100.00		
Owen, Rita	26.00		
Pryor, Thomas	20.00		

A. H. Rice and Company Schoolmaster Service Shields, John U. S. Postał Service U. N. H. Wilcox and Follett	\$ 4.30 27.25 3.75 242.65 38.67 2.68	\$ 814.77
HEALTH SERVICES:		
Other Expenses for Health Services: Betjemann, Christopher, M. D. Colebrook School District Dickson's Pharmacy Hughes' Pharmacy Norris, Mertrude, M. D. Parsons, Marjorie, M. D. Treasurer, State of N. H.	17.00 4.98 10.15 33.24 9.40 55.70 300.00	
PUPIL TRANSPORTATION:		\$ 430.47
Contracted Services: Guay, Alex Lynch, F. Robert Nugent Motor Company Placey, Burleigh Placey, Donald and Lynne Robie, Edwin Roy, E. Hampton	20.00 1,980.00 8,685.00 112.00 4,788.00 1,260.00 720.00	
OPERATION OF PLANT:		\$17,565.00
Salaries for Operation: Bushey, Willard Dorman, Sherman Gould, Benny McKinnon, Louise	975.00 825.00 349.98 1,049.94	¢ 2 100 02
Operation Supplies: Amway Products Colebrook School District Consolidated Foods	102.12 15.00 35.86	\$ 3,199.92

G. B. Currier's Company Hicks Hardware Holt and Sons Interstate Restaurant Equipment Luxor Lighting Products L. Parkhurst and Sons C. H. Robinson Paper Company Tri-State Paper Products Towle, Charles	133.63 9.35 15.90 379.69 119.20 33.44 63.75 199.85 21.75	
Contracted Services: Dorman, Sherman Ellis, Donald Sweatt, Arthur	55.50 37.00 21.00	\$ 1,129.54
Heat for Buildings: Lewis Oil Company	2,069.86	\$ 113.50 \$ 2,069.86
Utilities: New England Telephone New Hampshire Electric Corp. Public Service Company of N. H. Stewartstown Water Dis- trict Thibeault Gas, Oil and	429.04 378.33 325.36 118.27	\$ 2,069.86
Appliance MAINTENANCE OF PLANT:	65.56	<mark>\$ 1,</mark> 316.56
Replacement of Equipment: Norcross Office Equip- ment	207.60	
Repairs to Equipment: G. B. Currier' Company Dickson's Pharmacy	64.51 6.75	\$ 207.60

Daniel Hebert Inc. Multi-Media Services Thibeault Gas, Oil and Appliance	73.55 5.00 3.85		
Аррийнос		\$	153.66
Contracted Services: Bushey, Willard Canaan, Town of Conroy, Robert Cummings,,William Doric Foundations Dorman, Alan Hebert, Daniel Hunt, Evelyn National Fence and Gran- ite Company New Hampshire Labor Department Stewartstown School Dis- trict Thibeault Gas, Oil and Appliance Wright, Herbert	84.00 26.00 461.25 35.00 42.00 70.00 80.00 30.00 137.90 4.00 750.00 5.00 541.25		
Wight, Holbort		\$ 3	2,266.40
Repairs to Buildings: Cummings, William Currier's Store Hebert, Daniel Hicks Hardware Master Security Lock Ser- vice L. Parkhurst and Sons Stewartstown School Dis- trict Thibeault Gas, Oil and Appliance	6.14 43.07 56.90 97.67 15.95 210.54 350.00 1.46		
FIXED CHARGES:		\$	781.73
Retirement System:			
New Hampshire Retire- ment System	1,000.90		
		\$	1,000.90

FICA		
Treasurer, State of N. H.	\$ 1,900.10	
		\$ 1,900.10
Insurance:		\$ 1,000.10
Charles W. Varney and		
Sons Insurance	809.00	
		\$ 809.00
Rental of Land:		
St. Regis Paper Company	1.00	
		\$ 1.00
SCHOOL LUNCH & MILK		
PROGRAM:		
Salaries:		
Crawford, Lisette Hunt, Evelyn	331.20 584.00	
		\$ 915.20
Federal Monies: Stewartstown Lunch		
Program	2,970.47	
		¢ 0.070.47
District Monies:		\$ 2,970.47
Interstate Restaurant		
Equipment	6.12	
Stewartstown Lunch Program	1,298.03	
		\$ 1,304.15
CAPITAL OUTLAY:		
Buildings:		
Bushey, Willard	40.00	
L. Parkhurst & Sons	32.83	
		\$ 72.83
Equipment:	15.00	
B. P. Furniture Cenco Instruments Corp.	15.00 18.00	
Colebrook School District	45.00	
Humphrey's Corporation Kelley's Industrial Supply	671.65 107.00	
Multi-Media Services	296.42	

M. E. O'Brien & Sons Office Products of Berlin Phillip's Exeter Academy	135.21 84.40 25.00		
		\$ 1	,397.68
OUTGOING TRANSFER ACCOUNTS	:		
Tuition-Instate			
Colebrook School District Pittsburg School District	18,525.00 9,988.92		
		\$28	3,513.92
Supervisory Union Expenses: Supervisory Union No. 7	8,224.69		
		\$ 8	3,224.69
Tuition-Out-of-State Canaan School District	30,400.00		
		\$30),400.00
Tuition to Private Schools: Vershire Schools and Shops	725.00		
		\$	725.00
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES		\$154	1,553.61

In accordance with the laws of 1961, Chapter 189, Section 48, breakdown of the total amount paid to the Superintendent and Business Administrator by the State and respective school district is as follows:

Superintendent	Salary	Travel	Total
State of New Hamp-			
shire	\$ 4,500.00	\$.00	\$ 4,500.00
Colebrook	4,685.47	545.88	5,231,35
Columbia	947.60	110.40	1,058.00
Clarksville	472.77	55.08	527.85
Pittsburg	2,407.11	280.44	2,687,55
Stewartstown	1,787.05	208.20	1,995.25
	\$14,800.00	\$ 1,200.00	\$16,000.00
Business Administrator			
State of New Hamp-	-		
shire	.00	.00	.00
Colebrook	3,639.20	454.90	4,094,10
Columbia	736.00	92.00	828.00
Clarksville	367.20	45.90	413.10

Pittsburg	1,869.60	233.70	2,103.30
Stewartstown	1,388.00	173.50	1,561.50
	\$ 8,000.00	\$ 1,000.00	\$ 9,000.00

TEACHERS' CONTRACTED SALARIES 1972–1973

James Bibbo	\$ 7,480.00
Sylvia Carrigan	7,100.00
Dorothy Gould	6,900.00
Addie Gray	6,850.00
Roger McKinstry	6,200.00
Patricia Shively	6,700.00

JANITORS' CONTRACTED SALARIES 1972–1973

Noel Bedard	\$ 1,800.00
Evelyn Hunt	1,400.00

BUDGET

1973 - 1974

Compared with the Budget of 1972–73 and Expenditures of 1971–72

	Amount Expended 1971–72	Budget 1972–73	Proposed Budget 1973–74
Administration: Salary of District			
Officers \$ Contracted Services	724.00	720.00 100.00	720.00 100.00
Other Expenses	382.90	445.00	465.00
Instruction:			
Salaries of Prin- cipals	9,356.52	7,280.00	8,070.00
Salaries of Teach-	20,000,12	25,000,00	27 500 00
ers Salaries of Sub-	30,000.13	35,000.00	37,500.00
stitu tes	1,968.50	400.00	500.00 450.00
Testbooks Library Audio-	124.22	400.00	450.00
Visual	648.76	400.00	510.00
Teaching Supplies Contracted Services	2,463.35 501.28	1,130.00 1,125.00	1,405.00 2,250.00
Other Expenses	814.77	230.00	200.00
Attendance Services:			
Other Expenses		20.00	20.00
Health Services: Salaries			432.00
Other Expenses	430.47	317.00	276.00
Pupil Transportation:			
Contracted Ser- vices	17,565.00	18,405.00	16,608.00
Operation of Plant:			
Salaries of Janit-	0.400.00	0.000.00	2 050 00
ors Supplies	3,199.92 1,129.54	3,380.00 640.00	3,950.00 540.00
Contracted Services	113.50	150.00	170.00
Heat	2,069.86	2,500.00	2,500.00
Utilities	1,316.56	1,350.00	1,400.00
Maintenance of Plant: Replacement of			
Equipment	207.60	700.00	200.00
	57		

	Amount Expended 1971–72	Budget 1972–73	Proposed Budget 1973–74
Repairs of Equip- ment Contracted Services Repairs of Building		100.00 1,000.00 700.00	100.00 1,500.00 700.00
Fixed Charges: Teacher Retire- ment FICA Insurance Rent of Land	1,000.90 1,900.10 809,00 1.00	987.00 2,348.00 1,475.00	1,345.00 3,065.00 1,415.00 1.00
School Lunch & Milk Program:	015 00		
Salaries Federal Monies District Monies	915.20 2,970.47 1,304.15	3,000.00 2,530.00	3,000.00 3,500.00
Student Body Activ- ities: General Support		100.00	150.00
Capital Outlay: Sites Buildings	72.83		250.00
Equipment	1,397.68	925.00	600.00
Outgoing Transfer Accounts: Tuition In-			
State Supervisory Union	28,513.92	42,875.00	48,666.00
Expenses	8,224.69	8,917.00	9,001.00
Tuition Out-of-	30,400.00	40,700.00	34,780.00
Tuition–Private Schools	725.00		703.00
Totals	\$154,553.61	\$179,949.00	\$187,042.00

ESTIMATED INCOME

1973 - 1974

Deleves an Hand July 1, 1072	6.000.00
Balance on Hand July 1, 1973	
Sweepstakes	2,500.00
Foundation Aid	32,000.00
Child Benefit Services	500.00
School Lunch & Milk Program	3,000.00
Total Estimated Receipts	44,000.00
Total Budget	187,042.00
	+1 10 0 10 00
REQUESTED APPROPRIATION	\$143,042.00

REGISTRATION AND ATTENDANCE

1972 - 1973

Teacher West Side	Grade	No. of Pupils	No. of Boys	Average Attendance	Average Membership	% Attendance	No. Tardy
Cleora Richardson	1–2	17	8	15.09	15.75	95.70	7
Dorothy Gould	3–4	23	14	21.02	21.56	97.50	9
Addie Gray	5–6	23	7	21.58	22.54	95.75	11
James Bibbo	7–8	27	16	24.24	25.18	96.27	8
Total West Side		90	45	81.93	85.05	96.31	35
Hollow School:							
Diana Nowell	1-4	16	13	13.40	13.90	96.42	2
Arlene Shields	5–8	16	12	13.73	14.42	95.20	2
Total Hollow		32	25	27.13	28,32	95,81	4

ENROLLMENT 1972 - 1973

Grades	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	Total
West– Side	14	8	9	12	12	7	16	10	88
Hollow	0	4	1	5	3	5	3	5	26

TUITION PUPILS

1972 - 1973

School	No.	
	Pupils	Rate
Colebrook Academy	30	800.00
Colebrook Elementary	2	675.00
Pittsburg High School	17	800.00
Canaan Memorial High	33	925.00

TRANSPORTATION

1972 - 1973

Transporter	Rate Per Day	No. Pupils	Miles Per Day
F. Robert Lynch	11.00	11	17.4
Nugent Bus Service	22.50	50	47
Nugent Bus Service	22.75	62	59
Placey, Lynne	14.00	22	68
Placey, Lynne	12.00	39	40
Roy, E. Hampton	4.00	1	24
**Nugent Bus Service	9.00		

To transport Stewartstown high school students attending Pittsburg High School and riding on the Clarksville bus.

	Births Regis	stered i	in the Town of Stewartstown, N	Births Registered in the Town of Stewartstown, N. H. for the year Ending December 31, 1972	1, 1972	
Date of Birth	Date Name of of Birth Child	Sex	Name of Father	Maiden Name of Mother	Birthplace of Father Mother	lace Mother
January 24 R S	ry Ronnie Joseph Brian Smith	Σ	Bradley Gene Smith	Doris Paulette Rancourt	И. Н.	И. Н.
May 10	Richard Reginald Burtrend Rancourt II	٤	Richard R. B. Rancourt I	Constance Mae Hughes	Washington N. H. D. C.	N. H.
17	Richard Ernest Woodard Jr. Bichard Baymond	Σ	Richard Ernest Woodard	Gloria Marie Theresa Fournier	Maine	Vt.
2	Rodrigue	Σ	Raymond Joseph Rodrique	Francine Irene Lemay	Vt.	Canada
July 6 11	Lynne Mae Rancourt Dustin Clyde Day, Jr. Tina Marie Placey	ᇤᆯᇤ	Guy Marcel Rancourt Dustin Clyde Day Landon Lee Placey	Claire Flora Caron Betty Jean Owen Carol Ann Roy	ΞΞΞ ΞΞΞ ΞΞΞ	Х.Н. К.Н.
October 29 B	er Bertrand Michael La- flamme	Σ	Bertrand M. Laflamme	Marthe Diane Fournier	Canada	Canada
November 26 Eug	nber Eugene Joseph Cote	Σ	Paul Aime Cote	Cheryl Ann Noyes	N. H.	Vt.

inter Portician in the Tourn of Standartania N H for the room Ending Passad

VITAL STATISTICS

ł

i

-61-

Date and Place of Marriage	Name and Surname of Groom & Bride	Residence of Each at Time of Marriage	Age	Place of Birth of Each	Names of Parents	Name, Residence and Official Station of Person by Whom Married
January R	Dustin Clyde Day	Stewartstown	33	N. H.	Louis C. Day	Frederick Harrigan
Colebrook N. H.	Betty Jean Owen	Stewartstown N. H.	20	И. Н.	wary Eva Frizzell William Owen Irene Elsie Bolton	Justice of the Feace Colebrook, N. H.
January 1	Sherman Alson Dorman	Stewartstown M H	35	N. H.	Thomas Dorman	Rev. Ralph Sabine
Canaan Vt.	Marilla Jane Holden	Colebrook N. H.	31	Vt.	Jesse Cass Coates	Canaan, Vt.
March 11	Landon Lee Placey	Stewartstown N H	21	и. н.	Reginald Placey	Rev. Harry Bartlett
Colebrook N. H.	Carol Ann Roy	Stewartstown N. H.	20	Vt.	ьаціетив гикиеу Edward Roy Doreen Gilbert	Colebrook, N. H.
July 1	Russell Reuben Fuller, Jr.	Canaan	25	N. H.	Russell Fuller	Rev. Gerard Beaudet
Stewartstown N. H.	Carole Noella Marquis	v Stewartstown N. H.	17	N. H.	Cecile Cote Leon Marquis Edith Maurais	west Stewartstown, N. H.
August 12	Robert Lionel Arsenault	Beecher Falls V†	19	<mark>и.</mark> н.	Edgar Arsenault Volande Soutione	Rev. Gerard Beaudet
Stewartstown N. H.	Nancy Lee Paquette	Beecher Falls Vt.	19	И. Н.	Lloyd Paquette Marion Hughes	o tewar ts town N. H.
November 23	Dean Lewis Bunnell	Canaan Vt.	21	N. H.	Dean Bunnell Barbara Novice	Rev. Gerard Beaudet
Stewartstown N. H.	Carol Denise Gilbert	Stewartstown N. H.	18	N. Y.	Jean Gilbert Regina Roy	N. H.

Marriages Registered in the Town of Stewartstown, N. H. for the Year Ending December 31, 1972

c

Date and Place of Death	of	Name of Deceased	Age Years	Place Age of Years Birth	Sex Marital Status	Name of Father	Maiden Name of Mother
Death last ye	Deaths 1971 not recorded in last year's Report						
July 23	Stewartstown, N. H.	Jean C. Cardin	73	Maine	M-M	Maxime Cardin	Agnes Abaire
Dec. 17	Stewartstown, N. H.	John Lawton	59	Canada	MN-M	James Lawton	Annie Hicks
Death	Deaths – 1972						
January 29 S	ry Stewartstown, N. H.	Demain Sereda	79	Russia	M-M	Demain Sereda	Unknown
February 15 Ste	ary Stewartstown, N. H.	Walter C. Flanders	73	.н. И	M-M	Ervin Flanders	Nellie Colby
March 30	Stewartstown, N. H.	Sydney Arthur Adams	67	Maine	M-M	Jasper Adams	Evie Parsons
June 8 23	Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H.	Anne Marie Pinette Mike Michalevich	78 81	Canada Russia	F-M M-S	Leon Laliberte Karp Michalevich	Edwidge Paradis Natulka Unknown
July 11 16	Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H.	Willard J. Bushey Holman Bunnell	72 65	Ч.≺ Ч.	M-M M-M	Joseph Bushey Don Bunnell	Helen Gendron Martha Forest

1072 č I 100 3 Z Deaths Benistered in the Town of Stev

-63-

Maiden Name of Mother	Unknown Rose Currier	Julie Godin	Marv Unknown	Melvina Trivette Margaret Letter	Marie Roberge Hattie Simpson Sadie Hartford	Eugenie Landry
Name of Father	Maise Senechal Irving Chappell		Jacob Korchuck	Lawrence Roby Thomas Devlin		
Sex Marital Status	M-S P-S	M-M	M-W	M-S F-W	F-W M-W	D-M
Place Age of Years Birth	Canada N. H.	И. Н.	Poland	Vermont Vermont	н Н И И И И	Maine
Age Year	60 80	79	88	81 90	68 76 87	72
Name of Deceased	Ludgar Senechal Averis Chappell	John Perry	Thomas Korchuck	Elma Roby Flevia D. Devlin	Rose M. Liberty Oral Erwin Stoddard Ernest Cass	Camille Tardiff
Date and Place of Death	lly Stewartstown, N. H. Stewartstown, N. H.	August 3 Stewartstown, N. H.	September 16 Stewartstown, N. H.	October 11 Stewartstown, N. H. 24 Stewartstown, N. H.	November 6 Stewartstown, N. H. 23 Stewartstown, N. H. 30 Stewartstown, N. H.	December 4 Stewartstown, N. H.
	July 19 30	A.	3°	510	30 23 6 No	O V

-	6	4	-
---	---	---	---

REPORT OF SERVICE RENDERED

IN THE TOWN OF STEWARTSTOWN 1972

Mental health services for the town of Stewartstown were significantly expanded during the past year — both counseling of individuals and of families, and services to Stewartstown children in school.

Twenty-one Stewartstown residents received counseling, either at the clinic office or in their homes, and the schools have been visited frequently to develop plans for assisting students with problems. Among the services being given to students are psychological evaluations; individual counseling; and counseling with families, either at school, in the home, or in the clinic office. Plans for helping the child in the classroom are discussed with the teacher and with other helping agencies such as special education and the school nurse.

Because the agency is locally based and operated, patients can be helped quickly, with the result that very few residents need to go on to New Hampshire Hospital or other resources out of the area.

Stewartstown's contribution to Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service helps in obtaining matching funds from state and other sources; and it insures that the staff is consistently available when needed. Costs are kept at a minimum without impairing quality of care; and per capita costs for our area are far below those of other rural mental health programs.

Upper Connecticut Valley Mental Health Service, Inc. meets all state and professional standards for such programs and is a full member of the New Hampshire Association of Community Mental Health Agencies.

Our staff is prepared to respond to your requests.

Respectfully submitted,

BURDETT S. ADAMS, ACSW Executive Director

-65-

#